Case 9:14-cv-81397-KAM Document 155 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/20/2016 Page 1 of 28

LNPEED STATENSDISTRICT COULRT
FOR THE SGUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
CANE NO 40 -NTROTNARR Y

RADE CONVINISSION snd STALL

Boost Sotoware, Ine ot ol

Detendanis,

STIPULATED ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND MONETARY
JUDGMENT AS TO MARK DONOHUE

Plomottssthe Pederal Trade Commssion 1T or Commission™ s and the State of
Floridas Oec el the Atermey Grenerad crState of Horida T ocheremalter “Plainuns ™ filed a
Comphont fon Permarent Tnjunction and Onher Bauaablie Relicr o Complaimt™y pursuant w
Sevines Plimand Ty oithe Foderdd Trade Commassion Act o FTO A7 15 0807858 350y
and 37hthe elomuarhaung und Consumer Fracd and Abase Prevenaon Act o Telemarketing

y -

Ser T I LN O de atola ToRand under the Doorida Doceptiive wand Dndair Trade Practices At
CTRDUTPAT L Pla Stan € 30l 200 ¢veg i BOE NoL <

Plaingts and Derendant Mars Dorehiae O Dorohue™ 1 sripuiate w the entry of this
Stpubated Order tor Peorianens heoanction ard Nongtarny Jademaent s Order s 1o resolve all

R . ow g i,‘ 1 .'“‘,v\“ R T TR
matiers e dipate oy this adtior merwesn Live

THEREFORE T IS ORDERED as fodiv s

FINDINGS

Phabs ot Bas cartsdicimon o or s matier,

LAy
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Tes

i

e

[ 95

Phe Complaint charpes that Detendant Derohue participated in deceptive acts or
practives i viclation o Section Softhe FTO A D SO ¢4 the FIO s
Pelemarkenmy Sates Rude 07 TSR 1o O RO Pan 3700 ax amended. and FDUTPAL
section S01 204

Derendant Donohie nevther admits nor desies any of the alicgatons in the Complaint.
exvept as spectiivalhy stated 0t tis Gnder Oy Lo purposas of this action.
Derendant Denobue admits the faets nocessan W ostablish jurisdiction,

The parties agree that thes Order resolves alb alfegaurons in the Complaint

Derendant Donohue waives wad releases any chaim he s has e sgainst the Plaintifts
and the o agents that rolate o this setion,

Dietendant Donehue wanves any claim that e muay hane under the Fquul Access o
Justice Acr, 2R LSO 3 2412 comeerming the proscecution of this action through the
Jate of this Orders and sorees o bear Bis oovn costs and attorney fees,

Detendant Donobue waives b erghes woappea? or otherwase chadlenge or contest the

vabidits o ths Ovder,

DEFINTTIONS

For the purpese of tis Order. the tetlow g detininons shall apply:

i

SPlhaintifty orcarns the Feadera! Trode Commssion und she Stawe of Florida,

STelemarketing means amy pln progrem, o campaign that s conducted w induce the

surchase of goads or services or a chariuble contribution nuse of sne or more wlephones,
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PROHIBITION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS
ITIS HEREBY ORDERED that Detendunt Donohuc. his officors. agents. emplosees.
ard wttorney s and all othor porsors 1 actv e concert or purticipation with any of them. wio

rocor e actial nonee of this Order, whether actng directly or imdrecth o connection with the

H

marketing, adverising, premotion, distrination, el1erng o saic o sale of any goods or
services, are herehy pormanently regtratned and enjoined frony

A Misrepresaniing. directly or mdirecthvs onpressh o by implication, any marenial St

mciwding that they huve rdentinied prebierrs or consumers” compuaters thatwell aflect the
performiice or secnrity of e ComsumeysT Compuis o
B. Ay oacts o practices thut vielate FDU TP Chaprer 301 Part 11 Flonda Statutes.
inCludie, bur not iimited o, the wse ot any talse orsleading sttement w induce uny person 1o
Say tor gooeds or services i connection with the marketing, advertising, promotion, distribution,
atfering tor sale of any goeds ar e Kes.
I
PROHIBITION AGAINST DECEPTIVE TELEMARKETING

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that Detendant Donchue, his otfticers, agents,

emplovees. and attornes < ond all other persens oy g e coneert or participation with anmy of

themi, seho receive avivad notiee o this Opder. whather aonnyg divectls or indirectiy . in connection

with the Telemarketing ot g product or service. are permanentls restrumed and enjoined from:

A MaRing o talse ormisieading statenent o mduce any person o pan for coods or serviges
cr e indues a charnable contrhutior: or

1. Soclating Uie Telertohet ne Sales Ruje, 1o O 1 R Part 3o aached as Attachment AL

c&Q
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.
FOUITABLE MONETARY JUDGMENT AND SUSPENSION
T INFURTHER ORDERED that
A Judgment @3 the amount of Nine Million One Hundred Seventy-Seven Thousand
Dollars (S,177,000.00) is entered in favor ol the Plumiifs agains Defendant Donehue, as

eyuitable monetars ren

Phoe pudgment s suepended subect wo e subsections below,
I3 The Plaintrfs” agreement to the suspension of the iudgment is expressh premised upon
the ruthfulness, aveuracy, and completeness ¢f Delendant Doneobue’s vworn financial statement

pmitted 1o the Plainifts,

and related docwments reollectively ) U nenanal representatons”
natedy

the Frmancial Statement of Detendant Donchue stened on March 20 2015,
wluding the attachments:

Z the Donehue™s Statement of Current | inancial Situation, including the

attachmients, voniirming no change m b fnenog sioatios executed on March 31, 2016: and
3 the Finanord Statement of Mark Alesander Cooune tnel siened by Dielenduant

Donohae on June 90 2015 mcluding the witachmonts

( Phe suspersion of the tudemientwith ne ried as o Detendant Donohue 110 apon motion

B the Comymissiony and orhe Stue o Fhoandn e Cout fods thiat Delondant Donohae failed o

Jisclose sy mugenial asser materndhy missiated the value of any asset. or made uny other
Muterial psstalement of omission ain e i representations identified ahove.
Dy [ the suspension o the judement o ieds the judgment becomes immediately due us 1o

Desendint Donehie v the amount speainied iy Subsection A ahove tahich the parties stipulate
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vrihy for parposes <2 thils Section represents the consanwer pygars b plus iterest computed trom
hedate ot entry of this Ornder

i Mhe tcts alleged v the Complomn will be tehen as true, witheut further proot, inany
subsequent v Bitzanon by or o behalt of the Plann s, inciuding in a proceeding 1o enforee
s pights 16 any paviment of monetry Judament parsuant to thes Order sueh as a non-

dischargesbiiny compiarn 11 and Dubaroics G,

ood i the Complant estabiish ali elements pecessary o sustain an action
by the Commussion pursuant to Seerion 225300 20 o the Bankraprey Codel T LSO
332 Man Zd o and this Order will has e codlaterad estoppel eftect tor such purposss,

Cs Detendunt Donobiue ackaossiedees that s Taxea o Kenuficatiion Numbers i Secial

Secariy Number and any Limplover Ientitication Sumbersowhich he must submit o the
Plaintitrs, may pe used for eollectng und reporting on any delinquent amount arising out of this
Order. inaccordanes with 31 080 770

H AT menes pand o e Plarme s purseant te this Order mass be deposiied tite 2 fund
adimimisiered py the Commiiston or s desionee on behal? of both the Commission and the State
of Flovida to b used tor cquatabio rehicn, including consamer redress und any altendant expenses
o the wdnnmstration o any redress tund Boaoropresentativ e of the Phamints decides thar direct

redress o consuniers s foi i o partiely pnpractoahlio o smones remams atter redress s

completed. the Plamuris mey applhy any remaring mones tor such other equitable reliet
nncluding consumier mfonmation remedioss as st determimes o be reasonably related 10 the Vast
Detendants” pracvuees allesed i the Complumt Any money not used tor such equitable relict
shall be divided benween the Commission and e Stare o onda o be deposited o the TS,

, :
ErOisLy s dis2argen

ntand the State or Florids Derartment of Legat Aftams Dserow bund.
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Detendants i this proceeding han e pooright wo chelienge any actions the Plaintifrs, the Receiver

CrEer represeniatives nun tuhe pursaant weothos Nuhsection
IV,
CUSTOMER INFORMATION
IS TURTHER ORDERED that Detondant Donchue. his officers, agents, emplovees,
and attornevs, and all other porsons o acun ¢ concart or participason with any of them. who

receive actual notice o s Order are permanents cestrained and enfoined from dircctlv or

o to provide ~ufticient customer wformation o eaable the Plaintints wo efficientds
adminisrer constmer redress Vo reprosentatin e of the Plamutts regquest i writing any
information related to redress, Detendant Donobue must provide nin the torm preseribed by the
Plamnifts, within 14 das s

wing, or benetitiny from custoner informaton, including the name. address.

telephone number, email addresss social securies number, other wdentitving intormation. or anv
data that enables Gocess Lo custenier s account dncluding a credit card, bank account. or other
fNnunciad secounte that Dotendant Donolioe abtaimed prior o entrs of this Order i connection
with the sale o ans sech support products or senvicess and

- Puthing ro destoon such custoner information w ot forms in thew possession, custody. o
corprel st 30 dies after cithior s Dy cniy ot a stipeared Dl arder against Ui Jast rentnimg

detendanis or (Zyrecept ot written direction 1o do o om arepresentative of the Plainurts,

Provided. Bowever bt customer amlomudion

¢ , i e - iy -
ot b disposed of, and may be

drsclosad, to the evient requosted By aocov o

Uazencey o reguired by e, reguliation, or

SO order.

oy
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A\
COOPERATION
ITISTURTHEFR ORDERE D that Detendant Derohue muost tudly cooperate with

Uthe Commission and the State ot Fhanda i this case and many myvestigalion

rerreseniahives of Ny

related o or aesociated with the tranaactions v i occumences that are the subject ot the

fadara complete mermation. evidence, and

st e nde

Compiunt. Detendurt Donchue

secdiscovery, bearings. trials, and any

wostimony . Derendant Donohue must appear oy
la representatives may reasenabhy request

other proveestings that Cormmission o State o Florsd

wpen & donvs wantten notices er other reasonable notioe, at such phaces and times as such

represcrtative man designates without the service of asubpoena,

VI
ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
PEIS FURTHER ORDERDY fan Detendar: Donchue oblan acknow ledgments of

iFY

l“’\xe"' ol this Order.

Az Detendant Domohae, withon 7 davs ofentry on ths Order, must submit to the Commission

an ackirowdedoment of recerpt ob this Order swoarn under penaits of perjury.
B. For five o3 vear- after entry ol gus Oceders Detendunt Donohue, for any business that he.
e maiorite owner ar contrals divecthy

mdoviduntiy or collecuvely with any other Detendants is the

wr mdirethve mes debver woops o this Onder ton 07 o prineipaiss o ficers, direstors, and 11«

orrcers and momberss 20 ull emvorloseos, woents, and representatiy os who participate in

Pary business entiy resulting from an

conduct related o the subrectmutior

chamue m structure as set torth mthe Secuen ttled Complianee Reportime. Delivers must occur
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activiios imciuding wre busmess tor which Detenaant Donobue pertorms services whether as an

cmploves or otherwise ard any ertitn prwhich Defendunt Donohue has any ownershipinterest

and o deses Dretendant Donohuc™s invabvement i euch such business, including

tle. roles responsintiities, participation, authoriny, contols and amy omnersiap,

B Forten e vears alter entry of s Order. Dotendant Donobue mast submat 2

. . : T
uﬁinpézmyc nolive. o bde ;\.JMH R NG S TSRS TR I Jan s Jii‘» Vi mnt 1
follovng:

1. Detendant Danoboe mustreport ans b vhany designated pointof

conact or (b the sructure of ay entity that Deferndant Donchiue has any ovwnership interest in

or correls divectiy or imdirectly that may attect comephanee ohiipanons srising under this Order.

mciuding: creaton merger, sakes or dissolutonr o the entiny or any subsidiary, parent, or
AlTTHaTe that engages 1 ansy acms of pravives subject o this Order

2 Addinenaih Detendant Denchue must report s chunge inn oy name, ineluding
ahiases op Totineis pame. o residene addres<s o oo e orrole i any business acnvity,
mciudime any business for whreh he portorns sorvioes whether ssan emplosee or othensise and

any ooty i owhien be has wo osvnership orterest, and identiiy the nume. phyvaical address, and

an Internet address ot the nusiness or en

. Dretfendant Denchue nuast suhovt o tw Plaintiths notiee of the tiling of any bankrupey

poetition. insolvency provecding, o simitar proceeding by o oainst Deterdant Donohue within

T4 davs of s fing.

D Ay subnyission to the Plamtins requs s Order to b sworm under penalty of

BTy st b tree and socvrate and comply wnth 28 00N 003 1 Td0 ) sech as by concludin

R

declare under penalts of penpure under the few s o the Laied States of America thae the
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foregoing o true wnd correct. brecued o

iy the date, signaton s (ull

name, title 07 appiivabler and signature,

3BV A representaline of the Plamtifis mowriting, all submissions
o the Plamtils purswant 1o this Opder must be ematicd to DFbricr o fie gov or sent by overnight
cotrter inot the TS Postal Servicer o Assocrate Director for Enforcenent. Bureau of

N . . .t P SR R .y 1 : T L.
Consumer Proecnon Toders Trele Comoossron, B0 Do

Soamia v enue NW Washington.

DC 20380 and South Flosida Bureau Chiel, Consumer Protection Diasion, Flonda Attorney
Ceneral, 3TN Flagler Drvel Sae 900\ est Pasnn Beack FLUS340T The subiect Tine must
Beging FTC v Boest Sotftware, Ine, LLU et ol
VL
RECORDREEPING

TIS FURTHLR ORDERD D that Deterdant Donahise must ereate cortam revords tor en
PR vears anter eney of the Orders and retam each such record for 3 vears. Speainicaliv,
Detendant Donobiue for s business that he indinordually or cotlecnvely with ansy other

detendants, is aomajoriy owaor or conteods direethy vrindirectiv, must oreate and retan the

tollons e reconds

A Sccountmg revords <howing the revenues tron all goods or services seld:
28 Porsonne! records showma tor each person providing services, whother as an emplovee

4

ar othenaise, that posson’ s amer addressesoelepiere numbers) jeb ttle or position: dates ol

services and o apphicabley the reason for wrninaton.

- Roverds af aff comamer complain wdrequests. whaether recebved direetlv or
j 1 A
awairedt!y o such as through o thrd parte, and any respons

ﬁ\

Y

|
:
v
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. Nop-duphicative copios ot am adveniserrent o cther muarkating material. including, weh

st e theny

pages, pop ups, cmatt adsertisemaants, and eon andio ey

E Non-guphicatine copres of 2l Telerurn cting saies seripts and rebuttals, and

e

Pelemurheting traaning muaterials und
i S records nevessary e demonstrate tall compiianes with each provision ol this Order
including aln subaissions w te Plainuits
IN
COMPLIANCE MONITORING

ITISTURTHER ORDERD D that 1o the parpose of monitoring Derendant Donohue’s

compliance with this Order, mcluang the tnaocwal representations upon which the judgment swas
suspended and any Leilure o transter any asses as required by this Order
\. Within 14 davs of recapl of s ritten roquest rom arepresentatives of the Commission

or the State of Hlordas Doetendans Dovehuae st sabmie addional complhionee reports or othier

roquested mivrmabion, sluch mess e sworn under penai of por

APTRCUr tor d [SRSAH HIons:

and produce documents tor ispection and coplorg Praniitns albse authorized o obtan

discoveny wathoun turther Teav e of court using ans ot the procedures presertboed by Federal

Rules of Ol Procedure 250 Stgncluding wiephome depositionsy, 31, 350 3036, 45 und 69,

13 For mallers converning Uns O e aatherzad w communicate directdy with
Dretendam Doncbue, Dorendian Domaliue most perniit represeniatives of the Commission and
the State of Florda oonterview s emploses or other persen atfiliaed with Detendant

¥ . . W s L wam vpadnge - . N - R . o
Donchue who has agreed toosuch an o mterview . The persenminieraewed may have counsel

presoni
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C. Plaintiffs may use all other lawtul mears, ncluding posing, through their representativ es

s consumers, supplicrs, or viher individuals or eitities. w0 Defendunt Donehue or any individual

or entivy aftiliared with Defendunt Denohue, withowt the nevessity of identification vr prior

notive. Nothing in this Order Yimits the Commission’s lawiul use of compulsorny process.

pursuant W Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC At i3 US.C 8

24

49, 27b-1.

B, Upon wrilien request from a reprosentative of tne Commission or the State of Florida,

any consumer reporting agency must furnish consumer reports concerning Defendant Donohue.

parsuent w Section G 1) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act. 131 8.0, §1081bia) 1).

X.

RETENTION OF.JURISDICTION

T IS FURTHLER QRDERED that this Court retains huisdiction of this mader tor

purposes o} vonstruction, madification. und enforcement of this Oxder,

®

SO ORDERED this (7 day of TV £

Wil

SO STIPULATED AND AGREED:

FOR PLAINTIFF:

éé‘{-‘%}mc: 3 t_zc_/_i /—(
Russel! Deite

1. Ranuid Brooke. Ir.

Florida Special Bur No., A550052v
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvmia Avenue. N W,
Washington. D.C. 20380

1202 326-3484 ). Brooked

{2021 3262885 4R, Deitcly

(2023 326-3393 itavsimile)

7<’)_,._,« .

UNITED STATES DISTRICT .ILEJJ_C::-F.

BrPea™N A s pnly

LAl

Paticia A, (onpers

Florida Bar Number 0361275
Deputy Attorney General
Depurtmient of 1 egal Affairs
OFFICF OF 1 HE ATTORNEY
GENERAT,

The Capitel

Talkdassoe, F1 323991050
(8560 243-0140

1 hl




Case 9:14-cv-81397-KAM Document 155 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/20/2016 Page 13 of 28

Tty e renr o o AT PR,
Prish Conmers oy Norndalegaicom
B I3 I - P k2 1 f ., ; PR - 7‘: L yepien
oo fou Pl Foderad Trioni U Do

o iversrte s Wit
{mpiianiog o

FORDEFENDANT MARK DONOIUE

a
e —

NMark Donohue, Derondam
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Attachment A



PART 310—TELEMARKETING SALES
RULE 16 CFR PART 310

Sec.

310.1 Scope of regulations in this part.

310.2 Definitions.

310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or prac-
tices.

310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or prac-
tices.

310.5 Recordkeeping requirements.

310.6 Exemptions.

310.7 Actions by states and private persons.

310.8 Fee for access to the National Do Not
Call Registry.

310.9 Severability.

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 6101--6108.

SOURCE: 75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, unless
otherwise noted.

$310.1 Scope of regulations in this
part.
This part implements the Tele-

marketing and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. 6101-
6108, as amended.

§310.2 Definitions.

(a) Acquirer means a business organi-
zation, financial institutlion, or an
agent of a business organization or fi-
nancial institution that has authority
from an organization that operates or
licenses a credit card system to author-
ize merchants to accept, transmit, or
process payment by credit card
through the credit card system for
money, goods or services, or anything
else of value.

380
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Attachment A



Federal Trade Commission

(b) Attorney General means the chief
legal officer of a state.

(¢) Billing information means any data
that enables any person to access a
customer’'s or donor’s account, such as
a credit card, checking, savings. share
or similar account, utility bill, mort-
gage loan account, or debit card.

(d) Caller identificalion service means a
service that allows a telephone sub-
scriber to have the telephone number,
and, where available, name of the call-
ing party transmitted contempora-
neously with the telephone call, and
displayed on a device in or connected
to the subscriber’s telephone.

(e) Cardholder means a person to
whom a credit card is issued or who is
authorized to use a credit card on be-
half of or in addition to the person to
whom the credit card is issued.

(fy Charitable contribution means any
donation or gift of money or any other
thing of value.

g) Commission meahs the Federal
Trade Commission.

(h) Credit means the right granted by
a creditor to a debtor to defer payment
of debt or to incur debt and defer its
payment.

(i) Credit card means any card, plate,
coupon book, or other credit device ex-
isting for the purpose of obtaining
money, property, labor, or services on
credit.

(i) Credit card sales draft means any
record or evidence of a credit card
transaction.

(k) Credit card system means any
metlhod or procedure used to process
credit card transactions involving cred-
it cards issued or licensed by the oper-
ator of that system.

(1) Customer means any person who is
or may be required to pay for goods or
services offered through tele-
marketing.

(m) Debt relief service means any pro-
gram or service represented, directly or
by implication, to renegotiate, settle,
or in any way alter the terms of pay-
ment or other terms of the debt be-
tween a person and one Or more unse-
cured creditors or debt collectors, in-
cluding, but not limited to, a reduction
in the balance, interest rate, or fees
owed by a person to an unsecured cred-
itor or debt collector.

§310.2

(n) Donor means any person solicited
to make a charitable contribution.

(0) Established business relationship
means a relationship between a seller
and a consumer based on:

(1) the consumer’s purchase, rental,
or lease of the seller’s goods or services
or a financial transaction between the
consumer and seller, within the eight-
een (18) months immediately preceding
the date of a telemarketing call; or

(2) the consumer’s inquiry or applica-
tion regarding a product or service of-
fered by the seller, within the three (3)
months immediately preceding the
date of a telemarketing call.

(p) Free-to-pay conversion means, in
an offer or agreement to sell or provide
any goods or services, a provision
under which a customer receives a
product or service for free for an initial
period and will incur an obligation to
pay for the product or service if he or
she does not take affirmative action to
cancel before the end of that period.

(q) Investment opportunity means any-
thing, tangible or intangible, that is of-
fered, offered for sale, sold, or traded
based wholly or in part on representa-
tions, either express or implied, about
past, present, or future income, profit,
or appreciation.

(r) Material means likely to affect a
person’s choice of, or conduct regard-
ing, goods or services or a charitable
contribution.

(s) Merchant means a person who is
authorized under a written contract
with an acquirer to honor or accept
credit cards, or to transmit or process
for payment credit card payments, for
the purchase of goods or services or a
charitable contribution.

(t) Merchant agreement means a writ-
ten contract between a merchant and
an acquirer to honor or accept credit
cards, or to transmit or process for
payment credit card payments, for the
purchase of goods or services or a char-
itable contribution.

(u) Negative option feature means, in
an offer or agreement to sell or provide
any goods or services, a provision
under which the customer’s silence or
failure to take an affirmative action to
reject goods or services or to cancel the
agreement is interpreted by the seller
as acceptance of the offer.
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(v) Outbound telephone call means a
telephone call initiated by a tele-
marketer to induce the purchase of
goods or services or to solicit a chari-
table contribution.

(w) Person means any individual,
group, unincorporated association, lim-

ited or general partnership, corpora-
tion, or other business entity.
(x) Preacquired account information

means any information that enables a
seller or telemarketer to cause a
charge to be placed against a cus-
tomer’s or donor’s account without ob-
taining the account number directly
from the customer or donor during the
telemarketing transaction pursuant to
which the account will be charged.

(y) Prize means anything offered, or
purportedly offered, and given, or pur-
portedly given, to a person by chance.
For purposes of this definition, chance
exists if a person is guaranteed to re-
ceive an item and, at the time of the
offer or purported offer, the tele-
marketer does not identify the specific
item that the person will receive,

(z) Prize promotion means;

(1) A sweepstakes or other game of
chance; or

(2) An oral or written express or im-
plied representation that a person has
won, has been selected to receive, or
may be eligible to receive a prize or
purported prize.

(aa) Seller means any person who, in
connection with a telemarketing trans-
action, provides, offers to provide, or
arranges for others to provide goods or
services to the customer in exchange
for consideration.

(bb) State means any state of the
United States, the District of Colum-
bia, Puerto Rico, the Northern Mariana
Islands, and any territory or possession
of the United States.

(cc) Telemarketer means any person
who, in connection with telemarketing,
initiates or receives telephone calls to
or from a customer or donor,

(dd) Telemarkeling means a plan, pro-
gram, or campaign which is conducted
to induce the purchase of goods or serv-
ices or a charitable contribution, by
use of one or more telephones and
which involves more than one inter-
state telephone call, The term does not
include the solicitation of sales
through the mailing of a catalog
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which: contains a written description
or illustration of the goods or services
offered for sale; includes the business
address of the seller; includes multiple
pages of written material or illustra-
tions; and has been issued not less fre-
quently than once a year, when the
person making the solicitation does
not solicit customers by telephone but
only receives calls initiated by cus-
tomers in response to the catalog and
during those calls takes orders only
without further solicitation. For pur-
poses of the previous sentence, the
term “further solicitation” does not
include providing the customer with
information about, or attempting to
sell, any other item included in the
same catalog which prompted the cus-
tomer’s call or in a substantially simi-
lar catalog.

(ee) Upselling means soliciting the
purchase of goods or services following
an initial transaction during a single
telephone call. The upsell is a separate
telemarketing transaction, not a con-
tinuation of the initial transaction. An
“exlernal upsell” is a solicitation
made by or on behalf of a seller dif-
ferent from the seller in the initial
transaction, regardless of whether the
initial transaction and the subsequent
solicitation are made by the same tele-
marketer. An ‘‘internal upsell” is a so-
licitation made by or on behalf of the
same seller as in the initial trans-
action, regardless of whether the ini-
tial transaction and subsequent solici-
tation are made by the same tele-
marketer,

§310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or
practices.

(a) Prohibited deceptive telemarketing
acts or practices. 1t is a deceptive tele-
marketing act or practice and a viola-
tion of this Rule for any seller or tele-
marketer to engage in the following
conduct;

(1) Before a customer consenits to
pay 65 for goods or services offered,

659 When a seller or telemarketer uses, or
directs a customer to use, a courier to trans-
port payment. the seller or telemarketer
must make the disclosures required by
§310.3(a)(1) before sending a courier to pick
up payment or authorization for payment, or
directing a customer to have a courier pick
up payment or authorization for payment. In
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failing to disclose truthfully, in a clear
and conspicucus manner, the following
material information:

(1) The total costs to purchase, re-
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any
goods or services that are the subject
of the sales offer; 680

(ii) All material restrictions, limita-
tions, or conditions to purchase, re-
ceive, or use the goods or services that
are the subject of the sales offer;

(iii) If the seller has a policy of not
making refunds, cancellations, ex-
changes, or repurchases, a statement
informing the customer that this is the
seller’s policy; or, if the seller or tele-
marketer makes a representation
about a refund, cancellation, exchange,
or repurchase policy, a statement of all
material terms and conditions of such
policy;

(iv) In any prize promotion, the odds
of being able to receive the prize, and,
if the odds are not calculable in ad-
vance, the factors used in calculating
the odds; that no purchase or payment
is required to win a prize or to partici-
pate in a prize promotion and that any
purchase or payment will not increase
the person’'s chances of winning; and
the no-purchase/mno-payment method of
participating in the prize promotion
with either instructions on how to par-
ticipate or an address or local or toll-
free telephone number to which cus-
tomers may write or call for informa-
tion on how to participate;

(v) All material costs or conditions
1o receive or redeem a prize that is the
subject of the prize promotion;

(vi) In the sale of any goods or serv-
ices represented to protect, insure, or
otherwise limit a customer’'s liability
in the event of unauthorized use of the
customer's credit card, the limits on a
cardholder’s liability for unauthorized
use of a credit card pursuant to 15
U.S.C. 1643;

the case of debt relief services, the seller or
telemarketer must make the disclosures re-
quired by §310.3(a)(1) before the consumer en-
rolls in an offered program.

660 For offers of consumer credit products
subject to the Truth in Lending Act, 15
U.8.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
226, compliance with the disclosure require-
ments under the Truth in Lending Act and
Regulation Z shall constitute compliance
with §310.3(a)(1)(i) of this Rule.

§310.3

(vii) If the offer includes a negative
option feature, all material terms and
conditions of the negative option fea-
ture, including, but not limited to, the
fact that the customer’s account will
be charged unless the customer takes
an affirmative action to avoid the
charge(s), the date(s) the charge(s) will
be submitted for payment, and the spe-
cific steps the customer must take to
avoid the charge(s); and

(viii) In the sale of any debt relief
service:

(A) the amount of time necessary to
achieve the represented results, and to
the extent that the service may include
a settlement offer to any of the cus-
tomer's creditors or debt collectors,
the time by which the debt relief serv-
ice provider will make a bona fide set-
tlement offer to each of them;

(B) to the extent that the service
may include a settlement offer to any
of the customer’s creditors or debt col-
lectors, the amount of money or the
percentage of each outstanding debt
that the customer must accumulate be-
fore the debt relief service provider
will make a bona fide settlement offer
to each of them;

(C) to the extent that any aspect of
the debt relief service relies upon or re-
sults in the customer’s failure to make
timely payments to creditors or debt
collectors, that the use of the debt re-
lief service will likely adversely affect
the customer’s creditworthiness, may
result in the customer being subject to
collections or sued by creditors or debt
collectors, and may increase the
amount of money the customer owes
due to the accrual of fees and interest;
and

(D) to the extenl that the debt relief
service requests or requires the cus-
tomer to place funds in an account at
an insured financial institution, that
the customer owns the funds held in
the account, the customer may with-
draw from the debt relief service at any
time without penalty, and, if the cus-
tomer withdraws, the customer must
receive all funds in the account, other
than funds earned by the debt relief
service in compliance with
§310.4(a)(5)(1)(A) through (C).

(2) Misrepresenting, directly or by
implication, in the sale of goods or
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services any of the following material
information:

(i) The total costs to purchase, re-
ceive, or use, and the gquantity of, any
goods or services that are the subject
of a sales offer;

(i1) Any material restriction, limita-
tion, or condition to purchase, receive,
or use goods or services that are the
subject of a sales offer;

(iii1) Any material aspect of the per-
formance, efficacy, nature, or central
characteristics of goods or services
that are the subject of a sales offer;

(iv) Any material aspect of the na-
ture or terms of the seller’'s refund,
cancellation, exchange, or repurchase
policies;

(v) Any material aspect of a prize
promotion including, but not limited
to, the odds of being able to receive a
prize, the nature or value of a prize, or
that a purchase or payment is required
to win a prize or to participate in a
prize promotion;

(vi) Any material aspect of an invest-
ment opportunity including, but not
limited to, risk, ligquidity, earnings po-
tential, or profitability;

(vii) A seller’s or telemarketer's af-
filiation with, or endorsement or spon-
sorship by, any person or government
entity;

(viii) That any customer needs of-
fered goods or services to provide pro-
tections a customer already has pursu-
ant to 156 U.8.C. 1643;

(ix) Any malerial aspect of a nega-
tive optlion feature including, but not
limited to, the fact that the customer's
account will be charged unless the cus-
tomer takes an affirmative action to
avoid the charge(s), the date(s) the
charge(s) will be submitted for pay-
ment, and the specific steps the cus-
tomer must take to avoid the
charge(s); or

(x) Any material aspect of any debt
relief service, including, but not lim-
ited to, the amount of money or the
percentage of the debt amount that a
customer may save by using such serv-
ice; the amount of time necessary to
achieve the represented results; the
amount of money or the percentage of
each outstanding debt that the cus-
tomer must accumulate before the pro-
vider of the debt relief service will ini-
tiate attempts with the customer’s
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creditors or debt collectors or make a
bona fide offer to negotiate, settle, or
modify the terms of the customer’s
debt; the effect of the service on a cus-
tomer's creditworthiness; the effect of
the service on collection efforts of the
customer’s creditors or debt collectors;
the percentage or number of customers
who attain the represented results; and
whether a debt relief service is offered
or provided by a non-profit entity.

(3) Causing billing information to be
submitted for payment, or collecting or
attempting to collect payment for
goods or services or a charitable con-
tribution, directly or indirectly, with-
out the customer’s or donor’s express
verifiable authorization, except when
the method of payment used is a credit
card subject to protections of the
Truth in Lending Act and Regulation
7,661 or a debit card subject to the pro-
tections of the Electronic Fund Trans-
fer Act and Regulation E.%2 Such au-
thorization shall be deemed verifiable
if any of the following means is em-
ployed:

(i) Express written authorization by
the customer or donor, which includes
the customer’s or donor’s signature;s63

(ii) Express oral authorization which
is audio-recorded and made available
upon request Lo the customer or donor,
and the customer’s or donor’s bank or
other billing entity, and which evi-
dences clearly both the customer’'s or
donor’s authorization of payment for
the goods or services or charitable con-
tribution that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction and the cus-
tomer’s or donor’s receipt of all of the
following information:

(A) The number of debits, charges, or
payments (if more than one);

(B) The date(s) the debit(s),
charge(s), or payment(s) will be sub-
mitted for payment;

661 Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.8.C. 1601 et
seg., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR part 226.

662 Electronic Fund Transfer Act, 15 U.8.C.
1693 et seq., and Regulation E, 12 CFR part
205,

663 For purposes of this Rule, the term
“signature’ shall include an electronic or
digital form of signature, to the extent that
such form of signature is recognized as a
valid signature under applicable federal law
or state contract law.
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(C) The amount(s) of the debit(s).
charge(s), or payment(s);

(D) The customer’s or donor’'s name;

(E) The customer’s or donor’s billing
information, identified with sufficient
specificity such that the customer or
donor understands what account will
be used to collect payment for the
goods or services or charitable con-
tribution that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction;

(F) A telephone number for customer
or donor inquiry that is answered dur-
ing normal business hours; and

(G) The date of the customer’s or do-
nor’s oral authorization; or

(iii) Written confirmation of the
transaction, identified in a clear and
conspicuous manner as such on the
outside of the envelope, sent to the
customer or donor via first class mail
prior to the submission for payment of
the customer’s or donor’s billing infor-
mation, and that includes all of the in-
formation contained in
§§310.3(a)(3)(11)(A)-(G) and a clear and
conspicuocus statement of the proce-
dures by which the customer or donor
can obtain a refund from the seller or
telemarketer or charitable organiza-
tion in the event the confirmation is
inaccurate; provided, however, that
this means of authorization shall not
be deemed verifiable in instances in
which goods or services are offered in a
transaction involving a free-to-pay
conversion and preacguired account in-
formation.

(4) Making a false or misleading
statement to induce any person to pay
for goods or services or to induce a
charitable contribution.

(b) Assisting and facilitating. 1t is a de-
ceptive telemarketing act or practice
and a violation of this Rule for a per-
son to provide substantial assistance or
support to any seller or telemarketer
when that person knows or consciously
avoids knowing that the seller or tele-
marketer is engaged in any act or prac-
tice that violates §§310.3(a), (¢) or (d),
or §310.4 of this Rule.

(¢) Credit card laundering. Except as
expressly permitted by the applicable
credit card system, it is a deceptive
telemarketing act or practice and a
violation of this Rule for:

(1) A merchant to present to or de-
posit into, or cause another to present

§310.3

to or deposit into, the credit card sys-
tem for payment, a credit card sales
draft generated by a telemarketing
transaction that is not the result of a
telemarketing credit card transaction
between the cardholder and the mer-
chant;

(2) Any person to employ, solicit, or
otherwise cause a merchant, or an em-
ployee, representative, or agent of the
merchant, to present to or deposit into
the credit card system for payment, a
credit card sales draft generated by a
telemarketing transaction that is not
the result of a telemarketing credit
card transaction between the card-
holder and the merchant; or

(3) Any person to obtain access to the
credit card system through the use of a
business relationship or an affiliation
with a merchant, when such access is
not authorized by the merchant agree-
ment or the applicable credit card sys-
tem.

(d) Prohibited deceplive acts or prac-
tices in the solicitation of charitable con-
tributions. It is a fraudulent charitable
solicitation, a deceptive telemarketing
act or practice, and a violation of this
Rule for any telemarketer soliciting
charitable contributions to misrepre-
sent, directly or by implication, any of
the following material information:

(1) The nature, purpose, or mission of
any entity on behalf of which a chari-
table contribution is being requested;

(2) That any charitable contribution
is tax deductible in whole or in part;

(3) The purpose for which any chari-
table contribution will be used;

(4) The percentage or amount of any
charitable contribution that will go to
a charitable organization or to any
particular charitable program;

(5) Any material aspect of a prize
promotion including, but not limited
to: the odds of being able to receive a
prize; the nature or value of a prize; or
that a charitable contribution is re-
quired to win a prize or to participate
in a prize promotion; or

(6) A charitable organization’s or
telemarketer’'s affiliation with, or en-
dorsement or sponsorship by, any per-
son or government entity.
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§310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or
practices.

(a) Abusive conduct generally. It is an
abusive telemarketing act or practice
and a violation of this Rule for any
seller or telemarketer to engage in the
following conduct:

(1) Threats, intimidation, or the use
of profane or obscene language;

(2) Requesting or receiving payment
of any fee or consideration for goods or
services represented to remove deroga-
tory information from, or improve, a
person’'s credit history, credit record,
or credit rating until:

(i) The time frame in which the seller
has represented all of the goods or
services will be provided to that person
has expired; and

(ii) The seller has provided the person
with documentation in the form of a
consumer report from a consumer re-
porting agency demonstrating that the
promised results have been achieved,
such report having been issued more
than six months after the results were
achieved. Nothing in this Rule should
be construed to affect the requirement
in the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15
U.S.C. 1681, that a consumer report
may only be obtained for a specified
permissible purpose;

(3) Reguesting or receiving payment
of any fee or consideration from a per-
son for goods or services represented to
recover or otherwise assist in the re-
turn of money or any other item of
value paid for by, or promised to, that
person in a previous telemarketing
{ransaction, until seven (7) business
days after such money or other item is
delivered to that person. This provision
shall not apply to goods or services
provided to a person by a licensed at-
torney;

(4) Requesting or receiving payment
of any fee or consideration in advance
of obtaining a loan or other extension
of credit when the seller or tele-
marketer has guaranteed or rep-
resented a high likelihood of success in
obtaining or arranging a loan or other
extension of credit for a person;

(5)(i) Requesting or receiving pay-
ment of any fee or consideration for
any debt relief service until and unless:

(A) The seller or telemarketer has re-
negotiated, settled, reduced, or other-
wise altered the terms of at least one
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debt pursuant to a settlement agree-
ment, debt management plan, or other
such valid contractual agreement exe-
cuted by the customer;

(B) The customer has made at least
one payment pursuant to that settle-
ment agreement, debt management
plan, or other valid contractual agree-
ment between the customer and the
creditor or debt collector; and

(C) To the extent that debts enrolled
in a service are renegotiated, settled,
reduced, or otherwise altered individ-
ually, the fee or consideration either:

(I) Bears the same proportional rela-
tionship to the total fee for renegoti-
ating, settling, reducing, or altering
the terms of the entire debt balance as
the individual debt amount bears to
the entire debt amount. The individual
debt amount and the entire debt
amount are those owed at the time the
debt was enrolled in the service; or

(2) Is a percentage of the amount
saved as a result of the renegotiation,
settlement, reduction, or alteration.
The percentage charged cannot change
from one individual debt to another.
The amount saved is the difference be-
tween the amount owed at the time the
debt was enrolled in the service and the
amount actually paid to satisfy the
debt.

(ii) Nothing in §310.4(a)(5)(1) prohibits
requesting or requiring the customer
to place funds in an account to be used
for the debt relief provider’s fees and
for payments to creditors or debt col-
lectors in connection with the renego-
tiation, settlement, reduction, or other
alteration of the terms of payment or
other terms of a debt, provided that:

(A) The funds are held in an account
at an insured financial institution;

(B) The customer owns the funds held
in the account and is paid accrued in-
terest on the account, if any;

(C) The entity administering the ac-
count is not owned or controlled by, or
in any way affiliated with, the deht re-
lief service;

(D) The entity administering the ac-
count does not give or accept any
money or other compensation in ex-
change for referrals of business involv-
ing the debt relief service; and

(E) The customer may withdraw from
the debt relief service at any time
without penalty, and must receive all
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funds in the account, other than funds
earned by the debt relief service in
compliance with §310.4(a)(bY(I)A)
through (C), within seven (7) business
days of the customer’s request.

(6) Disclosing or receiving, for con-
sideration, unencrypted consumer ac-
count numbers for wuse in tele-
marketing; provided, however, that
this paragraph shall not apply to the
disclosure or receipt of a customer’s or
donor’s billing information to process a
payment for goods or services or a
charitable contribution pursuant to a
transaction;

(7) Causing billing information to be
submitted for payment, directly or in-
directly, without the express informed
consent of the customer or donor. In
any telemarketing transaction, the
seller or telemarketer must obtain the
express informed consent of the cus-
tomer or donor to be charged for the
goods or services or charitable con-
tribution and to be charged using the
identified account. In any tele-
marketing transaction involving
preacquired account information, the
requirements in paragraphs (a)(7)(i)
through (ii) of this section must be met
to evidence express informed consent.

(i) In any telemarketing transaction
involving preacquired account informa-
tion and a free-to-pay conversion fea-
ture, the seller or telemarketer must:

(A) Obtain from the customer, at a
minimum, the last four (4) digits of the
account number to be charged;

(B) Obtain from the customer his or
her express agreement to be charged
for the goods or services and to be
charged using the account number pur-
suant to paragraph (a)(M(1)(A) of this
section; and,

(C) Make and maintain an audio re-
cording of the entire telemarketing
transaction.

(ii) In any other telemarketing trans-
action involving preacquired account
information not described in paragraph
(@a)7)i) of this section, the seller or
telemarketer must:

(A) At a minimum, identify the ac-
count to be charged with sufficient
specificity for the customer or donor to
understand what account will be
charged; and

(B) Obtain from the customer or
donor his or her express agreement to

§310.4

be charged for the goods or services
and to be charged using the account
number identified pursuant to para-
graph (a)(7T)(11)(A) of this section; or

(8) Failing to transmit or cause to be
transmitted the telephone number,
and, when made available by the tele-
marketer’'s carrier, the name of the
telemarketer, to any caller identifica-
tion service in use by a recipient of a
telemarketing call; provided that it
shall not be a violation to substitute
(for the name and phone number used
in, or billed for, making the call) the
name of the seller or charitable organi-
zation on behalf of which a tele-
marketing call is placed, and the sell-
er's or charitable organization’s cus-
tomer or donor service telephone num-
ber, which is answered during regular
business hours.

(b) Pattern of calls. (1) It is an abusive
telemarketing act or practice and a
violation of this Rule for a tele-
marketer to engage in, or for a seller
to cause a telemarketer to engage in,
the following conduct:

(i) Causing any telephone to ring, or
engaging any person in telephone con-
versation, repeatedly or continuously
with intent to annoy, abuse, or harass
any person at the called number;

(ii) Denying or interfering in any
way, directly or indirectly, with a per-
son’'s right to be placed on any registry
of names and/or telephone numbers of
persons who do not wish to receive out-
bound telephone calls established to
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii);

(iil) Initiating any outbound tele-
phone call to a person when:

(A) That person previously has stated
that he or she does not wish to receive
an outbound telephone call made by or
on behalf of the seller whose goods or
services are being offered or made on
behalf of the charitable organization
for which a charitable contribution is
being solicited; or

(B) Thal person’s telephone number
is on the ‘‘do-not-call” registry, main-
tained by the Commission, of persons
who do not wish to receive outbound
telephone calls Lo induce the purchase
of goods or services unless the seller:

(i) Has obtained the express agree-
ment, in writing, of such person to
place calls to that person. Such written
agreement shall clearly evidence such
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person’'s authorization that calls made
by or on behalf of a specific party may
be placed to that person, and shall in-
clude the telephone number to which
the calls may be placed and the signa-
turef of that person; or

(ii) Has an established business rela-
tionship with such person, and that
person has not stated that he or she
does not wish to receive outbound tele-
phone calls under paragraph
(b)(1)(ii)(A) of this section; or

(iv) Abandoning any outbound tele-
phone call. An outbound telephone call
is “abandoned’ under this section if a
person answers it and the telemarketer
does not connect the call to a sales rep-
resentative within two (2) seconds of
the person’s completed greeting.

(v) Initiating any outbound telephone
call that delivers a prerecorded mes-
sage, other than a prerecorded message
permitted for compliance with the call
abandonment safe harbor in
§310.4(b)(4)(iii), unless:

(A) In any such call to induce the
purchase of any good or service, the
seller has obtained from the recipient
of the call an express agreement, in
writing, that:

(1) The seller obtained only after a
clear and conspicuous disclosure that
the purpose of the agreement is to au-
thorize the seller to place prerecorded
calls to such person;

(ii) The seller oblained without re-
quiring, directly or indirectly, that the
agreement be execuled as a condition
of purchasing any good or service;

(111) Evidences the willingness of the
recipient of the call to receive calls
that deliver prerecorded messages by
or on behalf of a specific seller; and

(iv) Includes such person’s telephone
number and signature;%6 and

(B) In any such call to induce the
purchase of any good or service, or to

664 For purposes of this Rule, the term
‘‘signature” shall include an electronic or
digital form of signature, to the extent that
such form of signature is recognized as a
valid signature under applicable federal law
or state contract law.

865 FTor purposes of this Rule, the Lerm
“signature’ shall include an electronic or
digital form of signature, to the extent that
such form of signature is recognized as a
valid signature under applicable federal law
or state contract law.
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induce a charitable contribution from a
member of, or previcus donor to. a non-
profit charitable organization on whose
behalf the call is made, the seller or
telemarketer:

(i) Allows the telephone to ring for at
least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4)
rings before disconnecting an unan-
swered call; and

(i1) Within two (2) seconds after the
completed greeting of the person
called, plays a prerecorded message
that promptly provides the disclosures
required by §310.4(d) or (e), followed
immediately by a disclosure of one or
both of the following:

(A) In the case of a call that could be
answered in person by a consumer, that
the person called can use an automated
interactive voice and/or keypress-acti-
vated opt-out mechanism to assert a
Do Not Call request pursuant to
§310.4((1)(ii1)(A) at any time during
the message. The mechanism must:

(1) Automatically add the number
called to the seller’s entity-gpecific Do
Not Call list;

(2) Once invoked,
connect the call; and

(3) Be available for use at any time
during the message; and

(B) In the case of a call that could be
answered by an answering machine or
voicemail service, that the person
called can use a toll-free telephone
number to assert a Do Not Call request
pursuant to §310.4(b)(1)(1ii)(A). The
number provided must connect directly
to an automated interactive voice or
keypress-activated opt-out mechanism
that:

(1) Automatically adds the number
called to the seller’s entity-specific Do
Not Call list;

(2) Immediately
connects the call; and

(3) Is accessible at any time through-
out the duration of the telemarketing
cambpaign; and

(iii) Complies with all other require-
ments of this part and other applicable
federal and state laws.

(C) Any call that complies with all
applicable requirements of this para-
graph (v) shall not be deemed to violate
§310.4(b)(1)(iv) of this part.

immediately dis-

thereafter dis-
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(D) This paragraph (v) shall not apply
to any outbound telephone call that de-
livers a prerecorded healthcare mes-
sage made by, or on behalf of, a covered
entity or its business associatle, as
those terms are defined in the HIPAA
Privacy Rule, 456 CFR 160.103.

(2) It is an abusive telemarketing act
or practice and a violation of this Rule
for any person to sell, rent, lease, pur-
chase, or use any list established to
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A), or
maintained by the Commission pursu-
ant to §310.4h) (i1 B), for any pur-
pose exceplt compliance with the provi-
sions of this Rule or otherwise to pre-
vent telephone calls to telephone num-
bers on such lists.

(3) A seller or telemarketer will not
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(1)(ii)
and (iii) if it can demonstirate that, as
part of the seller’'s or telemarketer's
routine business practice:

(i) It has established and imple-
mented written procedures to comply
with §310.4(b)(1)(ii) and (iii);

(ii) It has trained its personnel, and
any entity assisting in its compliance,
in the procedures established pursuant
to §310.4(b)(3)(1);

(iii) The seller, or a telemarketer or
another person acting on behalf of the
seller or charitable organization, has
maintained and recorded a list of tele-
phone numbers the seller or charitable
organization may not contact, in com-
pliance with §310.4(b)(1)({ii)(A);

(iv) The seller or a telemarketer uses
a process to prevent telemarketing to
any telephone number on any list es-
tablished pursuant to §310.4(b)(3)(iii) or
310.4(b)(1)(i1i¥B), employing a version
of the “‘do-not-call” registry obtained
from the Commission no more than
thirty-one (31) days prior to the date
any call is made, and maintains
records documenting this process;

(v) The seller or a telemarketer or
another person acting on behalf of the
seller or charitable organization, mon-
itors and enforces compliance with the
procedures established pursuant to
§310.4(b)(3)(i); and

(vi) Any subsequent call otherwise
violating §310.4(b)(1)(ii) or (iii) is the
resull of error.

(4) A seller or telemarketer will not
be liable for viclating §310.4(b)(1)(iv) if:

§3104

(i) The seller or telemarketer em-
ploys technology that ensures aban-
donment of no more than three (3) per-
cent of all calls answered by a person,
measured over the duration of a single
calling campaign, if less than 30 days,
or separately over each successive 30-
day period or portion thereof that the
campaign continues.

(ii) The seller or telemarketer, for
each telemarketing call placed, allows
the telephone to ring for at least fif-
teen (15) seconds or four (4) rings before
disconnecting an unanswered call;

(iil) Whenever a sales representative
is not available to speak with the per-
son answering the call within two (2)
seconds after the person’s completed
greeting, the seller or telemarketer
promplly plays a recorded message
that states the name and telephone
number of the seller on whose behalf
the call was placed®%6; and

(iv) The seller or telemarketer, in ac-
cordance with §310.5(b)-(d), retains
records establishing compliance with
§310.4(b)(4)(1)-(iii).

(c) Cualling time rvestrictions. Without
the prior consent of a person, it is an
abusive telemarketing act or practice
and a violation of this Rule for a tele-
marketer to engage in outbound tele-
phone calls to a person’s residence at
any time other than between 8:00 a.m.
and 9:00 p.m. local time at the called
person’s location.

(d) Required oral disclosures in the sale
of goods or services. It is an abusive tele-
marketing act or practice and a viola-
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer in
an outbound telephone call or internal
or external upsell to induce the pur-
chase of goods or services to fail to dis-
close truthfully, promptly, and in a
clear and conspicuous manner to the
person receiving the call, the following
information:

(1) The identity of the seller;

(2) That the purpose of the call is to
sell goods or services;

(3) The nature of the goods or serv-
ices; and

(4) That no purchase or payment is
necessary o be able to win a prize or

666 This provision does not affect any sell-
er’s or telemarketer's obligation to comply
with relevant state and federal laws, includ-
ing but not limited to the TCPA, 47 U.S.C.
227, and 47 CFR part 64.1200.
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participate in a prize promotion if a
prize promotion is offered and that any
purchase or payment will not increase
the person’s chances of winning. This
disclosure must be made before or in
conjunction with the description of the
prize to the person called. If requested
by that person, the telemarketer must
disclose the no-purchase/no-payment
entry method for the prize promotion;
provided, however, that, in any inter-
nal upsell for the sale of goods or serv-
ices, the seller or telemarketer must
provide the disclosures listed in this
section only to the extent that the in-
formation in the upsell differs from the
disclosures provided in the initial tele-
marketing transaction,

(e) Required oral disclosures in chari-
table solicitations. It is an abusive tele-
marketling act or practice and a viola-
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer, in
an outbound telephone call to induce a
charitable contribution, to fail to dis-
close truthfully, promptly, and in a
clear and conspicuous manner to the
person receiving the call, the following
information:

(1) The identity of the charitable or-
ganization on behalf of which the re-
quest is being made; and

(2) That the purpose of the call is to
solicit a charitable contribution.

[75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, as amended at 76
FR 58716, Sept. 22, 2011]

§310.5 Recordkeeping requirements.

(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall
keep, for a period of 24 months from
the date the record is produced, the fol-
lowing records relating to its tele-
marketing activities:

(1) All substantially different adver-
tising, brochures, telemarketing
scripts, and promotional materials;

(2) The name and last known address
of each prize recipient and the prize
awarded for prizes that are rep-
resented, directly or by implication, to
have a value of $25.00 or more;

(3) The name and last known address
of each customer, the goods or services
purchased, the date such goods or serv-
ices were shipped or provided, and the
amount paid by the customer for the
goods or seryvices; 667

467 For offers of consumer credit products

subject to the Truth in Lending Act, 15

16 CFR Ch. | (1-1-14 Edition)

(4) The name, any fictitious name
used, the last known home address and
telephone number, and the job title(s)
for all current and former employees
directly involved in telephone sales or
solicitations; provided, however, that if
the seller or telemarketer permits fic-
titious names to be used by employees,
each fictitious name must be traceable
to only one specific employee; and

(5) All verifiable authorizations or
records of express informed consent or
express agreement required to be pro-
vided or received under this Rule.

(by A seller or telemarketer may
keep the records required by §310.5(a)
in any form, and in the same manner,
format, or place as they keep such
records in the ordinary course of busi-
ness. Failure to keep all records re-
quired by §310.5(a) shall be a violation
of this Rule.

(¢c) The seller and the telemarketer
calling on behalf of the seller may, by
written agreement, allocate responsi-
bility between themselves for the rec-
ordkeeping required by this Section.
When a seller and telemarketer have
entered into such an agreement, the
terms of that agreement shall govern,
and the seller or telemarketer, as the
case may be, need not keep records
that duplicate those of the other. If the
agreement is unclear as to who must
maintain any required record(s), or if
no such agreement exists, the seller
shall be responsible for complying with
§§310.5(a)(1)-(3) and (b); the tele-
marketer shall be responsible for com-
plying with §310.5(a)(4).

(d) In the event of any dissolution or
termination of the seller's or tele-
marketer’s business, the principal of
that seller or telemarketer shall main-
tain all records as required under this
section. In the event of any sale, as-
signment, or other change in ownership
of the seller’'s or telemarketer’'s busi-
ness, the successor business shall main-
tain all records required under this sec-
tion.

U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
226, compliance with the recordkeeping re-
guirements under the Truth in Lending Act,
and Regulation Z, shall constitute compli-
ance with §310.5(a)(3) of this Rule.
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§310.6 Exemptions.

(a) Solicitations to induce charitable
contributions via outbound telephone
calls are not covered by
§310.4(b)(1)(111)}(B) of this Rule.

(b) The following acts or practices
are exempt from this Rule:

(1) The sale of pay-per-call services
subject to the Commission’s Rule enti-
tled “‘Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant
to the Telephone Disclosure and Dis-
pute Resolution Act of 1992 16 CFR
part 308, provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to the re-
quirements of §§310.4(a)(1), a)X(T), (),
and (c);

(2) The sale of franchises subject to
the Commission’s Rule entitled ‘*Dis-
closure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning Franchising,” (*‘Franchise
Rule’") 16 CFR part 436, and the sale of
business opportunities subject to the
Commission’s Rule entitled ‘'Disclo-
sure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning Business Opportunities,”
(*'Business Opportunity Rule') 16 CFR
part 437, provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to the re-
quirements of §§310.4(ax1), (a)7), (b),
and (¢);

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale
of goods or services or charitable solic-
itation is not completed, and payment
or authorization of payment is not re-
quired, until after a face-to-face sales
or donation presentation by the seller
or charitable organization, provided,
however, that this exemption does not
apply to the requirements of
§§310.4(a)(1), (a)T), (b), and (c);

(4) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-
tomer or donor that are not the result
of any solicitation by a seller, chari-
table organization, or telemarketer,
provided, however, that this exemption
does not apply to any instances of
upselling included in such telephone
calls;

(5) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-
tomer or donor in response to an adver-
tisement through any medium, other
than direct mail solicitation, provided,
however, that this exemption does not
apply to calls initiated by a customer
or donor in response to an advertise-
ment relating to investment opportuni-
ties, debt relief services, business op-
portunities other than business ar-
rangements covered by the Franchise

§310.7

Rule or Business Opportunity Rule, or
advertisements involving goods or
services described in §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or
310.4(a)(2)-(4); or Lo any instances of
upselling included in such telephone
calls;

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-
tomer or donor in response to a direct
mail solicitation, including solicita-
tions via the U.S. Postal Service, fac-
gimile transmission, electronic mail,
and other similar methods of delivery
in which a solicitation is directed to
specific address(es) or person(s), that
clearly, conspicuously, and truthfully
discloses all material information list-
ed in §310.3(a)(1) of this Rule, for any
goods or services offered in the direct
mail solicitation, and that contains no
material misrepresentation regarding
any item contained in §310.3(d) of this
Rule for any requested charitable con-
tribution; provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to calls initi-
ated by a customer in response to a di-
rect mail solicitation relating to prize
promotions, investment opportunities,
debt relief services, business opportuni-
ties other than business arrangements
covered by the Franchise Rule or Busi-
ness Opportunity Rule, or goods or
services described in §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or
310.4(a)(2)-(4); or to any instances of
upselling included in such telephone
calls; and

(7) Telephone calls between a tele-
marketer and any business, except
calls to induce the retail sale of non-
durable office or cleaning supplies; pro-
vided, however, that §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B)
and §310.5 of this Rule shall not apply
to sellers or telemarketers of non-
durable office or cleaning supplies.

§310.7 Actions by states and private
persons.

(a) Any attorney general or other of-
ficer of a state authorized by the state
to bring an action under the Tele-
marketing and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse Prevention Act, and any private
person who brings an action under that
Act, shall serve written notice of its
action on the Commission, if feasible,
prior to its initiating an action under
this Rule. The notice shall be sent to
the Office of the Director, Bureau of
Consumer Protection, Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and
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shall include a copy of the state’s or
private person’s complaint and any
other pleadings to be filed with the
court. If prior notice is not feasible,
the state or private person shall serve
the Commission with the required no-
tice immediately upon instituting its
action.

(b) Nothing contained in this Section
shall prohibit any attorney general or
other authorized state official from
proceeding in state court on the basis
of an alleged violation of any civil or
criminal statute of such state.

§310.8 Fee for access to the National
Do Not Call Registry.

(a) It is a violation of this Rule for
any seller to initiate, or cause any
telemarketer to initiate, an outbound
telephone call to any person whose
telephone number is within a given
area code unless such seller, either di-
rectly or through another person, first
has paid the annual fee, required by
§310.8(c), for access to telephone num-
bers within that area code that are in-
cluded in the National Do Not Call
Registry maintained by the Commis-
sion under §310.4(h)(1)(iii)(B); provided,
however, that such payment is not nec-
essary if the seller initiates, or causes
a telemarketer to initiate, calls solely
to persons pursuant to
§§310.4(b)(1)di1)(B)(1) or (i1), and the
seller does not access the National Do
Not Call Registry for any other pur-
pose.

(b) It is a violation of this Rule for
any telemarketer, on behalf of any sell-
er, to initiate an outbound telephone
call to any person whose telephone
number is within a given area code un-
less that seller, either directly or
through another person, first has paid
the annual fee, required by §310.8(c),
for access to the telephone numbers
within that area code that are included
in the National Do Not Call Registry;
provided, however, that such payment
is not necessary if the seller initiates,
or causes a telemarketer to initiate,
calls solely to persons pursuant to
§§310.4(b)(1)(I11)(B)(1) or (i), and the
seller does not access the National Do
Not Call Registry for any other pur-
pose.

(¢) The annual fee, which must be
paid by any person prior to obtaining

16 CFR Ch. | (1-1-14 Edition)

access to the National Do Not Call
Registry, is $59 for each area code of
data accessed, up to a maximum of
$16.228; provided, however, that there
shall be no charge to any person for ac-
cessing the first five area codes of data,
and provided further, that there shall be
no charge to any person engaging in or
causing others to engage in outbound
telephone calls to consumers and who
is accessing area codes of data in the
National Do Not Call Registry if the
person is permitted to access, but is
not required to access, the National Do
Not Call Registry under this Rule, 47
CFR 64.1200, or any other Federal regu-
lation or law. Any person accessing the
National Do Not Call Registry may not
participate in any arrangement to
share the cost of accessing the reg-
istry, including any arrangement with
any telemarketer or service provider to
divide the costs to access the registry
among various clients of that tele-
marketer or service provider.

(d) Each person who pays, either di-
rectly or through another person, the
annual fee set forth in §310.8(c), each
person excepted under §310.8(¢c) from
paying the annual fee, and each person
excepted from paying an annual fee
under §310.4(b)(1)(iii}B), will be pro-
vided a unigue account number that
will allow that person to access the
registry data for the selected area
codes ab any time for the twelve month
period beginning on the first day of the
month in which the person paid the fee
(“*the annual period’’), To obtain access
to addilional area codes of data during
the first six months of the annual pe-
riod, each person required to pay the
fee under §310.8(c) must first pay $59
for each additional area code of data
not initially selected. To obtain access
to additional area codes of data during
the second six months of the annual pe-
riod, each person required to pay the
fee under §310.8(c) must first pay $30
for each additional area code of data
not initially selected. The payment of
the additional fee will permit the per-
son to access the additional area codes
of data for the remainder of the annual
period.

(e) Access to the National Do Not
Call Registry is limited to tele-
marketers, sellers, others engaged in or
causing others to engage in telephone
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calls to consumers, service providers
acting on behalf of such persons, and
any government agency that has law
enforcement authority. Prior to access-
ing the National Do Not Call Registry,
a person must provide the identifying
information required by the operator of
the registry to collect the fee, and
must certify, under penalty of law,
that the person is accessing the reg-
istry solely to comply with the provi-
sions of this Rule or to otherwise pre-
vent telephone calls to telephone num-
bers on the registry. If the person is ac-
cessing the registry on behalf of sell-
ers, that person also must identify
each of the sellers on whose behalf it is
accessing the registry, must provide
each seller’s unigue account number
for access to the national registry, and
must certify, under penalty of law,
that the sellers will be using the infor-
mation gathered from the registry
solely to comply with the provisions of
this Rule or otherwise to prevent tele-
prhone calls to telephone numbers on
the registry.

{75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010; 75 FR 51934, Aug.
24, 2010, as amended at 77 FR 51697, Aug. 27,
2012; 78 FR 53643, Aug. 30, 2013]

§310.9 Severability.

The provisions of this Rule are sepa-
rate and severable from one another, If
any provision is stayed or determined
to be invalid, it is the Commission’s in-
tention that the remaining provisions
shall continue in effect.
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